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November 17, 2022 
 
Barbara Krizek, REHS/RS 
Carbon County Sanitarian 
PO Box 466 
Red Lodge, MT 59068 
 
RE:  Pt E ½ of SW ¼ & Pt SW ¼ of SE ¼ Less 1382  

Ruby Septic Application  
 Carbon County 
 Board of Health Variance Request 
 
Dear Ms. Krizek & Board of Health Members, 
 
Engineering West has submitted plans for an elevated sand mound system for Derick Ruby on a 
portion of the East ½ of the Southwest ¼ and a portion of the Southwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼ 
less Certificate of Survey 1382.  The house is currently finished and waiting for a septic system 
approval. 
 
The concern for this project is that the proposed elevated sand mound is next to the FEMA 100-
year floodplain boundary.  The current FEMA map panel 30009C0255D is declared zone A, 
which is an unstudied, undetailed area.  Thus, a general floodplain area is mapped using old 
coarse topographical maps.  In my 
professional experience these maps 
are often misleading and incorrect.  
The area of concern seems to be just 
that, incorrect.  
 
The image shows the current 
adopted mapped floodplain with 
relationship to the proposed 
drainfield.  The proposed system is 
outside of the adopted map.  The 
concern arises with the requirements 
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within Table 2 of the Administrative Rules of Montana 17.36.323, which requires that system be 
100 feet away from a floodplain.  However, the rules (withing the footnotes) allow for systems 
to be closer to the floodplain if the bottom of the proposed system is 2 feet above the base 
flood elevation.  Unfortunately, Zone A, an unstudied area, does not contain base flood 
elevations.  The table is reproduced below.  
 
However, Rock Creek is currently being restudied and remapped.  The preliminary results are 
shown on the image above, which show that the proposed floodplain is nearly 250 feet away 
from the system horizontally, and around 6 feet vertically below the bottom of the drianfield. 
 
The groundwater levels were monitored during the 2021 and 2022 peak seasons, and are 
shown in the image. 

 
 
An alternative to this variance is that Engineering West could complete a study of the area and 
submit the data to FEMA that would most likely agree with the study currently underway.  This 
process will take several months and several thousands of dollars.  
 
Waiver Requested 

- Allow proposed drainfield to be adjacent to current floodplain delineation knowing 
that Administrative Rules of Montana allow this and also that the new mapping will 
be nearly 250’ horizontally and 6’ vertically from the proposed system. 
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17.36.323    SETBACKS 

(1) Minimum setback distances, in feet, shown in Table 2 of this rule must be maintained, except 
as provided in the table footnotes or as allowed through a deviation granted under ARM Title 17, 
chapter 38, subchapter 1. The setbacks in this rule are not applicable to gray water irrigation 
systems that meet the setbacks and other requirements of ARM 17.36.319. 

TABLE 2 

SETBACK DISTANCES 

(in feet) 

From To 

Drinking 
Water Wells 

To  

Sealed Components (1) 
and Other Components (2) 

To 

Drainfields/Soil 
Absorption Systems (3) 

Public or multiple-user 
drinking water wells/springs 

- 100 (4) 100 

Individual and shared 
drinking water wells 

- 50 (4) 100 

Other wells (5) - 50 (4) 100 (4) 
Suction lines - 50 100 
Cisterns - 25 50 
Roadcuts, escarpment - 10 (6) 25 
Slopes > 35 percent (7) - 10 (6) 25 
Property boundaries 10 (8) 10 (8) 10 (8) 
Subsurface drains - 10 10 
Water mains - 10 (9) 10 
Drainfields/Soil absorption 
systems 

100 10 - 

Foundation walls - 10 10 
Surface water (10), springs 100 (4) (11) 

(12) 
50 (4) (11) 100 (4) (11) (13) 

Floodplains  10 (4) (11) - Sealed components - no 
setbacks (1) 

Other components - 100 
(2) (4) (11) 

100 (11) (14) 

Mixing zones 100 (4) - - 
Storm water ponds and 
ditches (15) 

25 (4) (16) 10 (4) 25 (4) 
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(1) Sealed components include holding tanks, sealed pit privies, raw wastewater pumping stations, dose tanks, and septic tanks. 
Sealed components must meet the requirements of ARM 17.36.322(4). 

(2) Other components include the components addressed in Department Circular DEQ-4, Chapter 7. 

(3) Absorption systems include the systems addressed in Department Circular DEQ-4, Chapters 6 and 8, subject to the limitations 
in ARM 17.36.321. 

(4) A waiver of this requirement may be granted by the department pursuant to ARM 17.36.601. 

(5) Other wells include, but are not limited to, irrigation and stock watering, but do not include observation wells as addressed in 
Department Circular DEQ-4. 

(6) Sewer lines and sewer mains may be located in roadways and on steep slopes if the lines and mains are safeguarded against 
damage. 

(7) Down-gradient of the sealed component, other component, or drainfield/soil absorption system. 

(8) Easements may be used to satisfy the setback to property boundaries. 

(9) Unless a waiver is granted by the department pursuant to ARM 17.36.601, sewer mains that cross water mains must be laid 
with a minimum vertical separation distance of 18 inches between the mains. 

(10) For purposes of this rule, "surface water" does not include intermittent storm water. 

(11) The department may require more separation from the floodplain or from surface water or springs if it determines that site 
conditions or water quality requirements indicate a need for the greater distance. 

(12) Pursuant to ARM 17.36.331, the reviewing authority may require greater than a 100-foot horizontal separation between a 
well and surface water if there is a potential that the well may be influenced by contaminants in the surface water. 

(13) A waiver may be granted by the department, pursuant to ARM 17.36.601, if the applicant demonstrates that ground water 
flow at the drainfield site cannot flow into the surface water or spring. The setback between drainfields or soil absorption systems 
to irrigation ditches does not apply if the ditch is lined with a full culvert. 

(14) After consultation with the local health department, a waiver may be granted by the department, pursuant to ARM 
17.36.601, if the applicant demonstrates that the surface water or spring seasonally high water level is at least a 100-foot 
horizontal distance from the drainfield and the bottom of the drainfield will be at least two feet above the maximum 100-year 
flood elevation. 

(15) Storm water ponds and ditches are those structures that temporarily hold or convey water as part of storm water 
management. 

(16) The setback is 100 feet for public wells, unless a deviation is granted under ARM Title 17, chapter 38, subchapter 1. 

 
Per ARM 17.36.922 the local board of health may grant variances from the requirements in 
Chapter 900 and in Circular DEQ-4.  The items that are considered for the variance request are 
listed with comments below. 
 
(2) The local board of health may grant a variance from a requirement only if it finds that all the 
following criteria are met: 
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(a) granting the variance will not: 
 

(i) contaminate any actual or potential drinking water supply; 
 
The proposed addition to the wastewater treatment system is shown to 
pass the required non-degradation calculations and meets required 
setbacks to wells. 
 

(ii) cause a public health hazard as a result of access to insects, rodents, or 
other possible carriers of disease to humans; 

 
The proposed system will be constructed in accordance with Circular DEQ 
4 to the fullest extent possible and will not cause a public health hazard 
as a result of access to insects, rodents, or other possible carriers of 
disease to humans. 
 

(iii) cause a public health hazard by being accessible to persons or animals; 
 
The proposed system will be constructed in accordance with Circular DEQ 
4 in the fullest extent possible and will not cause a public health hazard 
to humans nor animals. 
 

(iv) violate any law or regulation governing water pollution or wastewater 
treatment and disposal, including the rules contained in this subchapter 
except for the rule that the variance is requested from; 
 
The proposed system is shown to meet governing water pollution  or 
wastewater treatment and disposal through adherence to the DEQ’s non-
degration requirements.  
 

(v) pollute or contaminate state waters, in violation of 75-5-605, MCA; 
 
The proposed system is shown to adhere to the DEQ’s non-degration 
requirements and trigger value analysis.  
 

(vi) degrade state waters unless authorized pursuant to 75-5-303, MCA; or 
 
The proposed system is shown to adhere to the DEQ’s non-degration 
requirements and trigger value analysis.  
 

(vii) cause a nuisance due to odor, unsightly appearance, or other aesthetic 
consideration; 
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The proposed system will be constructed in accordance with Circular DEQ 
4 to the fullest extent possible and will not cause a nuisance due to odor, 
unsightly appearance, or other aesthetic consideration   
 

(b) compliance with the requirement from which the variance is requested would result 
in undue hardship to the applicant; 
 
The alternative would take several months and several thousand months to complete. 
 
(c) the variance is necessary to address extraordinary conditions that the applicant could 
not reasonably have prevented; 
 
Moving the proposed system would take yet another season of groundwater monitoring 
and affect the current agricultural activities on the property. 
 
(d) no alternatives that comply with the requirement are reasonably feasible; and 
 
The proposed system meets all requirements. 
 
(e) the variance requested is not more than the minimum needed to address the 
extraordinary conditions 
 
The proposed system is the smallest size to adequately treat the wastewater produced 
from a 3-bedroom dwelling. 

 
Thank you for considering this request.  
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at jeremy@engineering-west.com or 
(406) 322-1116.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Jeremy O. Eaton, PE 
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